
           

LITTLE ELM ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Tuesday, January 19, 2021
5:00 pm

SPECIAL VIRTUAL MEETING
100 WEST ELDORADO PARKWAY

TOWN OF LITTLE ELM TOWN CENTER

AGENDA
           

1. Notice Regarding Public Participation Little Elm EDC Board of Directors and EDC Staff Attendance.   

 

Due to the COVID-19 (coronavirus) public health emergency, and in an effort to reduce in-person meetings that assemble
large groups of people, Governor Greg Abbott has granted a temporary suspension of certain rules to allow for (1) board
members and employees to participate in meetings via videoconference call or other remote electronic means without a
physical quorum of board members being present at the site of the meeting; and (2) the use of videoconferencing and
other remote means to allow the public to observe the meeting and, when required, to participate in the public meeting.

In an effort to reduce the spread of the virus, for the October 12, 2020, Economic Development Corporation meeting,
individuals will be able to address the Board on any topic through submission of the web form below. Forms received will
be recorded into the record and be given to the Board Members.

To access the videoconference online, follow these instructions:
To join the Zoom meeting, click https://zoom.us/s/91674961443

Pursuant to Section 551.007 of the Texas Government Code, individuals wishing to address the Board for items listed as
public hearings will be recognized when the public hearing is opened. For individuals wishing to speak on a non-public
hearing item, they may address the Board by submitting the online form at the following link:

https://www.littleelm.org/FormCenter/Administration-5/LE-Town-Council-Presentation-and-Announc-87.

Note: A physical quorum of the Economic Development Corporation Board may not be present during the meeting as some
Board Members may choose to participate in the meeting remotely as permitted by Governor Abbott’s suspension of
various statutes that may be interpreted to require face-to-face interaction between members of the public and board
members.

  

 

2. Roll Call and Call to Order of Special Virtual Meeting.
Identification of Quorum and call to order.

  

 

3. Discussion and Action to approve Minutes from December 14th, 2020 Regular Virtual Meeting. (Jennette Espinosa, EDC
Executive Director)

 

4. Discussion and Action to approve Financials for FY 2019 - 2020. (Jason Barth, Integrity Accounting & Payroll)
 

5. Discussion and Action to approve Ground Lease Purchase Agreement for Certain Multi-Family Property in Little Elm, Denton
County, Texas. (Jennette Espinosa, EDC Executive Director)

 

6. Discussion and Action to approve Ground Lease Purchase Agreement for Certain Retail Property in Little Elm, Denton
County, Texas. (Jennette Espinosa, EDC Executive Director)

 

7. Discussion and Action to approve Westside Planning Study Agreement between the Town of Little Elm, Little Elm EDC, and
Kimley Horn. (Jennette Espinosa, EDC Executive Director)

 

https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=https-3A__zoom.us_s_91674961443&d=DwQFaQ&c=euGZstcaTDllvimEN8b7jXrwqOf-v5A_CdpgnVfiiMM&r=OxvUDBWreTwmQGzkpY2LuQ&m=TLjR0I3XP8BYbdkvnFQC7zCx-s7h8hc-su6373B69N8&s=yHBLVEKajHDoFiTosAzHMsUuC53bqXa5k6Xjn1jk2s0&e=
mailto:https://www.littleelm.org/FormCenter/Administration-5/LE-Town-Council-Presentation-and-Announc-87


 

8. BRE/COVID Update (Natasha Roach, EDC Coordinator)   

 

9. Director's Report. (Jennette Espinosa, Executive Director)   

 

10. Executive Closed Session of the Board of Directors: The Little Elm EDC will now hold a Closed Session meeting pursuant to
the provisions of Chapter 552 of the Texas Government Code accordance with the authority contained in: 

Section 551.087 of the Texas Government Code to discuss or deliberate regarding commercial or financial
information that the LE EDC has received from a business prospect, and or to deliberate the offer of a financial or
other incentive with a business or prospect.

  

 

11. Reconvene into Open Session: The LIttle Elm EDC will now reconvene into Regular Session pursuant to the provisions of
Chapter 551 of the Texas Government Code in accordance with the authority contained in: 

Section 551.087 of the Texas Government Code to discuss or deliberate regarding commercial or financial
information that the LE EDC has received from a business prospect, and or to deliberate the offer of a financial or
other incentive with a business or prospect.

  

 

12. Adjournment.   

 

 

Respectfully,

Jennette Espinosa

Executive Director 

This is to certify that the above notice was posted on www.littleelm.org, Town of Little Elm website, under Agendas and Minutes prior to
5:00 p.m. this 14th day of January, 2021.

http://www.littleelm.org


  

Town Council Meeting
 
Date: 01/19/2021
Agenda Item #: 3. 
Department: Economic Development Corporation
Strategic Goal: Maintain operational integrity and viability
Staff Contact: Jennette Espinosa, EDC Executive Director

AGENDA ITEM:
Discussion and Action to approve Minutes from December 14th, 2020 Regular Virtual Meeting. (Jennette
Espinosa, EDC Executive Director)

Attachments
December 14 2020 Minutes 



 

 

MINUTES 
Little Elm Economic Development Corporation 

100 W. Eldorado Parkway 

 
Regular Virtual Meeting 

Monday, December 14, 2020 

6:00 p.m. 

 

Present: Ken Eaken, President; Casey Russell, Vice President; Michael McClellan, Council 
Liaison; Taylor Girardi, Treasurer; Michel Hambrick, Secretary; Director; Jack Gregg, Director; 

and Marce Ward, Director. 
 
Town Staff: Jennette Espinosa, Executive Director; Natasha Roach, EDC Coordinator, Jeff 

Moore, EDC Attorney; and Jason Barth, EDC Accountant 
 

Guests:  Stewart Shirey, Kevin Lerner with Government Capital 
 
Absent: none 

 
1. Notice Regarding Public Participation and Town Council/ Little Elm EDC/ EDC Staff 

and Town Staff Attendance.  
 
2. Call Order of Regular Virtual Meeting:  President, Ken Eaken called to order at 

6:01p.m. 
 

3. Discussion and Action to approve the Minutes of the Regular Virtual Meeting of 

November 9, 2020. Upon a motion by Casey Russell and a second by Jack Gregg, the 
members voted unanimously to approve the minutes as presented. 

 
4. Discussion and Action to approve a Resolution Authorizing the First Amendment to 

Promissory Note and Loan Agreement No. 6863 and resolving other matters incident and 
related thereto.  Upon a motion by Casey Russell and a second by Jack Gregg, the members 

voted unanimously to approve the amendment as presented. 
 

5. BRE/COVID Update: Discussion and update regarding Covid-19 and existing businesses. 
No Action Taken,  

 

7. Director’s Report: Discuss, update, and action regarding projects, policies, events,  
activities and calendar pertaining to EDC. No Action Taken, 

 
8. Executive Closed Session of the Board of Directors : The Little Elm EDC did not enter 

in to a Closed Executive Session meeting pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 551 of the 

Texas Government Code.  
 

 



9.  Adjournment: Meeting was adjourned at 6:30 pm. 
 

 
Respectfully, 

 
________________________________ 
Jennette Espinosa, Executive Director 

 
Passed and approved this______________ day of _____________ 2020

 



  

Town Council Meeting
 
Date: 01/19/2021
Agenda Item #: 4. 
Department: Economic Development Corporation
Strategic Goal: Maintain operational integrity and viability
Staff Contact: Jennette Espinosa, EDC Executive Director

AGENDA ITEM:
Discussion and Action to approve Financials for FY 2019 - 2020. (Jason Barth, Integrity Accounting & Payroll)

Attachments
FY2019-2020 Financials 



The Little Elm Economic Development Corporation is tasked with bringing much needed commercial, industrial

and tourist opportunities to the Town of Little Elm. The mission of the EDC is to advance the economic

development in Little Elm while maintaining traditional values and a sense of community. The Little Elm EDC was

founded in 1993 and has served the Town since that time. The EDC is made up of six members from the

community and a Town Council Liaison.

Casey Russell - Vice President

Jennette Espinosa - Executive Director

Natasha Roach - EDC Coordinator

Ken Eaken - President

Marce Ward - Board Member

Michael McClellan - Council Liaison

Michel Hambrick - Secretary
Taylor Girardi - Treasurer

Jack Gregg - Board Member

Economic Development Corporation
4A Sales Tax

FINANCIAL REPORTS

FY 2019-2020

Board of Directors



ASSETS:

Cash - Independent Bank Checking Account 2,370,067

Cash - Escrow Bank Account 75,531

Accounts Receivable-Sales Tax 458,622

Prepaid Expenses 490

Due From/To Other Funds 5,162,220

Total Assets $ 8,066,931

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

     Liabilities:

         Accounts Payable $ 231,471

 Accrued Expenses 300,000

        Accrued Payroll Liability 2,053

        Unearned Revenue 950,947

Total Liabilities $ 1,484,471

Fund Balance (Assets - Liabilities) $ 6,582,460

Fund Balances:

     Reserved for:

Land held for sale $ 0

Payables 1,484,471

       Unrestricted 5,097,989

           Total Fund Balance $ 6,582,460

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances $ 8,066,931

        Economic Development Corporation
BALANCE SHEET

 As of 09/30/2020



Beginning Cash - October, 2019 $ 1,542,474

Activity October 2019 - September 2020

      Inflows (less Interest/Investments) 3,097,335

      Interest Inflow* 28,902

      Outflows (2,223,113)

Net Increase/Decrease for period 903,125

EDC Cash Accounts $ 2,445,599

*The Interest Inflow received summarizes all investment

activity for the Little Elm EDC and is in compliance

with EDC Investment Policy and PFIA.

        Economic Development Corporation

        Cash and Investment Statement

09/30/2020



FY 2019-2020  PROFIT & LOSS

(Revenues, Expenditures and Change in Fund Balance)

ACCOUNT CODES ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION
 ACTUAL 

2017-2018 

 ACTUAL 

2018-2019 

 BUDGET  

2019-2020 

 ACTUAL 

Oct 19-   

Sep 20 

 4th Qtr 

Budget 

 Budget vs. 

Actual 

Revenue and Other Sources 100%

811-5132-00-00 CITY SALES TAXES 1,999,769  2,173,851 2,221,326 2,526,334 2,221,326  305,008     

811-5135-00-00 CONTRA TIRZ #3 LAKEFRONT (49,043)      (58,317)     (60,000)     (63,535)     (60,000)      (3,535)        

811-5136-00-00 CONTRA TIRZ #5 LINCOLN PARK (797)           (1,689)       (4,167)       -             (4,167)        

811-5140-00-00 CONTRA HOLT 380 AGREEMENT ('14-'19) (60,000)      (60,000)     -                -                -             -             

811-5141-00-00 CONTRA TEXAS FIRST 380 AGREEMENT ('17-'21) (6,458)        (15,176)     (21,500)     (14,705)     (21,500)      6,795         

811-5142-00-00 CONTRA GOVEI/CGRE 380 AGREEMENT ('18-24) (6,788)        (21,787)     (50,000)     (13,725)     (50,000)      36,275       

811-5400-00-00 MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE 9,989         1,900        1,500        9,750        1,500         8,250         

811-5611-00-00 INTEREST EARNINGS 27,692       36,701      15,000      28,902      15,000       13,902       

811-5678-00-00 CONCESSIONS-HYDROUS 30,000       30,000      30,000      -                30,000       (30,000)      

811-5682-00-00 RENTAL FEES -                 -                -                -                -             -             

811-5683-00-00 GROUND LEASE INCOME - HULA HUT 15,549       100           -                51,000      -             51,000       

811-5684-00-00 INTEREST REVENUE - TEXAS FIRST 136,550     135,382    132,185    132,185    132,185     -             

811-5684-00-00 PRINCIPAL REVENUE - TEXAS FIRST -                 70,177      73,374      73,374      73,374       -             

811-5802-00-00 INCOME -PALLADIUM PHASE 1 -                 145,880    85,813      144,696    85,813       58,883       

811-5804-00-00 INTERGOVT. INCOME -                 -                100,039    -             100,039     

811-8900-00-00 LOAN PROCEEDS -                 -                -                -                -             -             

811-8912-00-00 OTHER FINANCING SOURCES - MUSTANG 100,000     100,000    100,000 100,000    100,000     -             

Total Revenues and Other Sources 2,655,073  3,146,367 3,151,405 3,070,149 3,151,405  (81,256)      

Expenditures

Principal and Interest on Debt

811-6004-80-00 PRINCIPAL-LOAN CONSOLIDATION 420,388     435,888    452,623    518,700    452,623     66,077       

811-6005-80-00 INTEREST-LOAN CONSOLIDATION 284,327     268,826    252,092    170,909    252,092     (81,182)      

811-6009-80-00 PRINCIPAL-LINCOLN PARK PROJECT 97,853       101,238    104,740 104,740    104,740     -                 

811-6010-80-00 INTEREST-LINCOLN PARK PROJECT 78,077       74,692      71,190 71,190      71,190       -                 

811-6011-80-00 PRINCIPAL-TEXAS FIRST -                 70,177      73,374 73,374      73,374       -                 

811-6012-80-00 INTEREST-TEXAS FIRST 136,550     135,382    132,185 132,185    132,185     -                 

Total Debt Expenditures 1,017,195  1,086,204 1,086,204 1,071,099 1,086,204  (15,105)      

Personnel Costs

811-6108-80-00 SALARIES AND WAGES 250,821     254,197    269,465    258,476    269,465     10,989       

811-6114-80-00 TMRS 36,886       36,720      37,759      34,851      37,759       2,908         

811-6115-80-00 LONGEVITY PAY 540            660           780           780           780            -                 

811-6117-80-00 EDUCATION PAY 1,203         1,203        1,200        1,180        1,200         20              

811-6118-80-00 CAR ALLOWANCE 6,418         6,418        6,400        6,807        6,400         (407)           

811-6141-80-00 SOCIAL SECURITY 16,979       15,475      21,255      16,967      21,255       4,288         

811-6142-80-00 GROUP INSURANCE 22,224       22,612      23,227      22,813      23,227       415            

811-6143-80-00 WORKERS COMPENSATION -                 -                573           -                573            573            

811-6145-80-00 TEXAS EMPLOYMENT COMMISSION 83              -                100           -                100            100            

Total Personnel Expenditures 335,155     337,284    360,759    341,872    360,759     18,887       

-                 



FY 2019-2020  PROFIT & LOSS

(Revenues, Expenditures and Change in Fund Balance)

ACCOUNT CODES ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION
 ACTUAL 

2017-2018 

 ACTUAL 

2018-2019 

 BUDGET  

2019-2020 

 ACTUAL 

Oct 19-   

Sep 20 

 4th Qtr 

Budget 

 Budget vs. 

Actual 

Other Operating Costs -                 

811-6211-80-00 LEGAL SERVICES (Attorney) 10,531       12,444      30,000      18,324      30,000       11,676       

811-6214-80-00 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 15,005       14,545      26,675      17,243      26,675       9,432         

811-6229-80-00 OFFICE DEVELOPMENT 203            23,957      5,250        5,224        5,250         26              

811-6231-80-00 CONTRACTED SERVICES 14,535       23,504      603,925    404,424    603,925     199,501     

811-6232-80-00 GENERAL ADVERTISING AND WEBSITE 2,100         2,100        2,500        2,100        2,500         400            

811-6272-80-00 COMMUNICATIONS 2,620         2,873        3,000        2,952        3,000         48              

811-6276-80-00 TUITION REIMBURSEMENT 2,500         2,500        2,500        2,500        2,500         -                 

811-6278-80-00 LEASE PAYMENTS 10              10             -                10             -             (10)             

811-6342-80-00 OFFICE SUPPLIES 1,058         744           1,000        1,208        1,000         (208)           

811-6343-80-00 ADVERTISING 65,537       78,591      222,133    219,044    222,133     3,089         

811-6344-80-00 PRINTING AND MAILING 655            775           750           2,898        750            (2,148)        

811-6347-80-00 TRADE SHOWS EXPENSE 21,930       22,454      40,000      12,069      40,000       27,931       

811-6354-80-00 EMPLOYEE & PUBLIC RELATIONS 7,816         5,935        10,000      2,367        10,000       7,633         

811-6711-80-00 GASOLINE AND OIL 141            254           500           -                500            500            

811-6712-80-00 DUES & MEMBERSHIPS 7,890         7,910        12,502      9,029        12,502       3,473         

811-6715-80-00 SCHOOLS AND SEMINARS 17,323       23,629      24,000      3,885        24,000       20,115       

811-6719-80-00 UNIFORMS 702            469           1,000        1,147        1,000         (147)           

811-6729-80-00 LAND ACQUISITION FOR REDEVELOPMENT 1,501,799  292,461    240,000    -                240,000     240,000     

811-6730-80-00 INCENTIVES 200,000 0 290,000 41,556      290,000     248,444     

Total Operating Expenditures 2,330,963  1,124,501 2,139,441 745,979    2,139,441  (1,393,463) 
-                 

Transfers to Other Funds -                 

811-6250-80-00 CONTRACT WITH TOWN 30,000       30,000      30,000      30,000      30,000       -                 

811-6252-80-00 TRANSFER TO TIRZ #1 ROSEBRIAR (KROGER) 82,656       81,006      105,000    94,312      105,000     (10,688)      

Total Transfers 112,656     111,006    135,000    124,312    135,000     (10,688)      
-                 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 3,795,968  2,658,995 3,721,405 2,283,263 3,721,405  (1,438,142) 

-                 

EXCESS REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES (1,140,896) 487,372    (570,000)   786,886    (570,000)    1,356,886  

-                 

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE 2,297,480  1,298,348 1,408,258 1,655,574 1,408,258  

ENDING FUND BALANCE 1,298,348  1,655,574 1,408,258 2,442,460 1,408,258  



EDC Sales Tax Revenue

Prior Year Comparison '18-'19 vs '19-'20

 

Oct '18 - Sep '19 2,173,851$   

Oct '19 - Sep '20 2,526,334$   

352,483$      16% Increase from previous year

$156,352 $156,336

$205,335

$145,509
$153,736

$198,683

$189,104

$173,134

$211,337

$181,253
$189,950

$213,121

$201,565 

$168,468 

$242,466 

$162,870 

$180,325 

$216,673 

$198,494 

$212,939 

$273,009 

$210,902 

$201,033 

$257,589 

$50,000

$100,000

$150,000

$200,000

$250,000

$300,000

Oct 32% Nov 8% Dec 21% Jan 13% Feb 21% Mar 9% Apr 6% May 23% Jun 31% Jul 17% Aug 6% Sep 23%

2018-2019

2019-2020



Sales Tax History

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

Jan 301,085.29$    314,221.39$     366,808.60$     502,277.36$     511,405.44$     

Feb 458,319.45$    500,897.94$     562,049.36$     690,672.19$     748,660.19$     

Mar 296,586.82$    334,429.13$     349,370.10$     436,109.59$     493,699.86$     

Apr 306,062.26$    313,382.60$     354,326.07$     471,891.46$     528,104.67$     

May 502,565.73$    463,066.93$     575,093.53$     738,060.96$     701,993.46$     

Jun 352,094.06$    375,096.11$     426,107.67$     511,166.65$     551,737.08$     

Jul 345,892.22$    378,534.24$     436,425.80$     597,844.11$     593,683.90$     

Aug 467,389.00$    488,750.82$     596,320.99$     697,951.39$     692,708.05$     

Sep 348,900.78$    396,427.52$     534,441.01$     523,243.51$     567,361.39$     

Oct 343,440.35$    378,827.17$     473,294.73$     579,024.86$     579,167.66$     

Nov 462,807.12$    509,247.09$     646,723.89$     708,333.28$     728,055.05$     

Dec 357,665.01$    384,439.51$     505,923.12$     545,521.96$     571,664.91$     

EDC Historical Sales Tax Revenue

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

Jan 74,146.71$      83,607.28$       87,342.53$       109,027.40$     123,424.97$     

Feb 76,515.57$      78,345.65$       88,581.52$       117,972.87$     132,026.17$     

Mar 125,641.43$    115,766.73$     143,773.38$     184,515.24$     175,498.37$     

Apr 88,023.52$      93,774.03$       106,526.92$     127,791.66$     137,934.27$     

May 86,473.06$      94,633.56$       109,106.45$     149,461.03$     148,420.98$     

Jun 116,847.25$    122,187.71$     149,080.25$     174,487.85$     173,177.01$     

Jul 87,225.20$      99,106.88$       133,610.25$     130,810.88$     141,840.35$     

Aug 85,860.09$      94,706.79$       118,323.68$     144,756.22$     144,791.92$     

Sep 115,701.78$    127,311.77$     161,680.97$     177,083.32$     182,013.76$     

Oct 89,416.25$      96,109.88$       126,480.78$     136,380.49$     142,916.23$     

Nov 78,555.35$      91,702.15$       125,569.34$     127,851.36$     148,790.66$     

Dec 125,224.49$    140,512.34$     172,668.05$     187,165.05$     178,736.05$     

2013-2014 2014-2015 2015-2016 2016-2017 2017-2018

Oct 32% 89,416$           96,110$            126,481$          136,380$          142,916$          

Nov 8% 78,555$           91,702$            125,569$          127,851$          148,791$          

Dec 21% 125,224$         140,512$          172,668$          187,165$          178,736$          

Jan 13% 83,607$           87,343$            109,027$          123,425$          135,229$          

Feb 21% 78,346$           88,582$            117,973$          132,026$          129,192$          

Mar 9% 115,767$         143,773$          184,515$          175,498$          189,777$          

Apr 6% 93,774$           106,527$          127,792$          137,934$          153,006$          

May 23% 94,634$           109,106$          149,461$          148,421$          171,766$          

Jun 31% 122,188$         149,080$          174,488$          173,177$          196,736$          

Jul 17% 99,107$           133,610$          130,811$          141,840$          171,355$          

Aug 6% 94,707$           118,324$          144,756$          144,792$          192,342$          

Sep 23% 127,312$         161,681$          177,083$          182,014$          189,923$          

1,202,636$      1,426,350.32$  1,740,624.62$  1,810,524.68$  1,999,768.79$  

189,244.11$     

10.45%



2018 2019 2020

595,162.64$      625,342.96$      673,873.89$      

714,944.18$      821,341.08$      969,895.97$      

540,915.40$      582,036.11$      651,478.12$      

516,768.30$      614,945.43$      720,938.12$      

759,109.79$      794,733.08$      866,693.31$      

612,022.20$      756,415.85$      793,974.48$      

687,064.60$      692,535.64$      851,757.78$      

786,944.31$      845,348.53$      1,092,037.73$   

685,419.42$      725,010.09$      843,607.11$      

769,369.18$      759,800.58$      804,131.79$      

759,690.23$      852,485.11$      1,030,357.94$   

625,408.90$      806,259.26$      

2018 2019 2020

135,228.85$      145,509.03$      162,869.53$      

129,192.08$      153,736.36$      180,324.53$      

189,777.45$      198,683.27$      216,673.33$      

153,005.55$      189,103.96$      198,493.62$      

171,766.15$      173,133.91$      212,939.45$      

196,736.08$      211,337.13$      273,009.43$      

171,354.86$      181,252.52$      210,901.78$      

192,342.30$      189,950.15$      201,032.95$      

189,922.56$      213,121.28$      257,589.49$      

156,352.23$      201,564.82$      

156,335.74$      168,468.47$      

205,335.27$      242,466.49$      

 

2018-2019 2019-2020 Variance % Change

156,352$           201,565$           45,213$             32%

156,336$           168,468$           12,133$             8%

205,335$           242,466$           37,131$             21%

145,509$           162,870$           17,361$             13%

153,736$           180,325$           26,588$             21%

198,683$           216,673$           17,990$             9%

189,104$           198,494$           9,390$               6%

173,134$           212,939$           39,806$             23%

211,337$           273,009$           61,672$             31%

181,253$           210,902$           29,649$             17%

189,950$           201,033$           11,083$             6%

213,121$           257,589$           44,468$             23%

2,173,850.84$   2,526,333.87$   352,483.03$      18%



  

Town Council Meeting
 
Date: 01/19/2021
Agenda Item #: 5. 
Department: Economic Development Corporation
Strategic Goal: Promote and expand Little Elm’s identity
Staff Contact: Jennette Espinosa, EDC Executive Director

AGENDA ITEM:
Discussion and Action to approve Ground Lease Purchase Agreement for Certain Multi-Family Property in
Little Elm, Denton County, Texas. (Jennette Espinosa, EDC Executive Director)

DESCRIPTION:
This agreement is between the Little Elm Economic Development Corporation (Landlord) and Village at
Lakefront, LLC (Ground Lesee)

ChadNic purchased the development from Palladium/NE on December 29th and have requested that we split
the retail and multifamily agreement into two separate agreements. Purpose for request is to enable
developer to secure separate loans for refinancing. The Multifamily portion will now reflect 6.4 acres.

BUDGET IMPACT:
Lease amount and terms remain the same as the original agreement: Rent remains at $69,696.00 annually of
which payments started 12 months after the C.O. was obtained December 5, 2017. Option for “eligible to
purchase” is applicable the 8th lease year after obtaining their CO for the amount of $1,115,000.00.

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Staff recommends that Council approve the agreement as presented

Attachments
Ground Lease Purchase Agreement for Certain Multi-Family Property 







































































  

Town Council Meeting
 
Date: 01/19/2021
Agenda Item #: 6. 
Department: Economic Development Corporation
Strategic Goal: Promote and expand Little Elm’s identity
Staff Contact: Jennette Espinosa, EDC Executive Director

AGENDA ITEM:
Discussion and Action to approve Ground Lease Purchase Agreement for Certain Retail Property in Little
Elm, Denton County, Texas. (Jennette Espinosa, EDC Executive Director)

DESCRIPTION:
This is a Ground Lease Purchase Agreement between Little ELm Economic Development Corporation
(Landlord) and Village at Lakefront, LLC (Ground Lesee).

ChadNic purchased the development from Palladium/NE on December 29th and have requested that we split
the retail and multifamily agreement into two separate agreements. Purpose for request is to enable
developer to secure separate loans for refinancing. The Retail portion will now reflect 0.74 acres.

BUDGET IMPACT:
Lease amount and terms remain the same as the original agreement: Rent remains at $16,117.00 annually of
which payments start 12 months after the C.O. is obtained from tenant. Option for “eligible to purchase” is
applicable the 8th lease year after tenant obtains the CO for the amount of $257,875.00.

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Staff recommends that Council approve the agreement as presented

Attachments
Ground Lease Purchase Agreement for Certain Retail Property 











































































  

Town Council Meeting
 
Date: 01/19/2021
Agenda Item #: 7. 
Department: Economic Development Corporation
Strategic Goal: Promote and expand Little Elm’s identity
Staff Contact: Jennette Espinosa, EDC Executive Director

AGENDA ITEM:
Discussion and Action to approve Westside Planning Study Agreement between the Town of Little Elm,
Little Elm EDC, and Kimley Horn. (Jennette Espinosa, EDC Executive Director)

DESCRIPTION:
Over the past few years the Town has been experiencing an increased interest in the undeveloped
property on the west side of Town (see attachment of the area).  With the addition of the newly built
Walker Middle School and the transportation and improvements made by the Town and TXDOT, this area is
prime for development.  Knowing this, Town staff felt the need to be proactive and make sure we have a plan
both from a planning and economic perspective.  Towns today strive to be places where their residents can
work and live in a comfortable manner.  They attempt, through planning, to improve residents' quality of life
with providing parks, roadway infrastructure, pedestrian opportunities to shop, a sense of community, and a
sense of place or identity. 

The area is within Area 8 of the Comprehensive Plan and the most undesirable uses for this area are
mixed-use, big box commercial and additional lakefront homes (see attachment from the Comp. Plan). This
initiative also supports the Strategic Plan goal of promote and expand Little Elm's identity.
                               
                  Promote and expand Little Elm's identity: Maintain Little Elm's distinctive look and high
development standards that provide vibrant, high-quality neighborhoods and development.  Create a sense
of place and brand identity that extends beyond our borders.

This planning study will allow the Town to steer development that will have the highest and best uses from a
planning and economic development standpoint.  This study will also develop concepts and a strategic
implementation plan for the west side of the Town, generally around the intersection of West Eldorado
Parkway and Oak Grove Parkway.  In addition, the purpose of this process is to determine the best practices
for planning and economic development so that the west side area is not competitive with other centers in
the Town, such as the Lakefront District.  Another focus of this initiative will be to create a preferred
framework for development, optimal mix of land uses and provide recommendations for implementation of
a strategic plan for the area.  The Town staff and consultant leading the process proposed to have a steering
committee that will be composed of two members from each that represents the Council, Planning and
Zoning Commission and the Economic Development Corporation.  This will ensure we capture all the input
and insight from the different perspective of each board and commission. This process will be broken up into
phases below, however we are just concentrating on phase 1 at this time.  The first phase will concentrate on



the items below:

Phase 1 — Concept and Strategic Plan 
Review all adopted plans and studies
2 evening day workshops
Visioning and Round Table Discussions (Virtually)
Areas of interest
Zoning and Sub code evaluation
Potential Catalytic projects
Recommendations and strategies
Market research to understand basic conditions of market potential
Recruitment strategies based on current market trend and Town Vision
Conceptual Plans
Implementation/Next Step Plans

Phase 2 — Implementation of Strategic Plan 
Phase two will be an initiative to support the implementation of recommended strategies that are set
in Phase 1.  This will involve updating any ordinances, zoning map, land uses and economic plans. 
If the Council wishes to move forward with the update then we will have an agenda item to discuss the
scope based off the recommendations from Phase 1.

BUDGET IMPACT:
This project was approved in the 2020/2021 budget.
 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
This project was approved in the 2020/2021 budget.
 

Attachments
West End Development 
West End Zoning 
West End FLUP 
Comp Plan 
Professional Services Agreement 
2021 Concept/Strategic Plan 



Owner: Town of Little Elm
Acres: ~4.9

Windsor Dr
Old State Highway 24

Shorewood Dr

Hil
l L

n

Ripple Dr

Misty Trl

Shady Trl

Sleepy Hollow Trl

Kn
ob

 H
ill D

r

TurtlePond Cir

Hillcrest Dr

Lakeview
Dr

Elm Dr

Ed
ge

wo
od

 P
l Loneta Ln

Cottonwood Trl

Moonlight Dr

Cr
es

tw
oo

d P
l

No
rth

wo
od

Te
rra

ce

Gr
ee

nw
oo

d D
r

Woodridge Dr

Highland Dr

Cove Pl

Su
nri

se
Ct

Pinnacle Bay Point

Wellington Dr

Elk
 Po

int
 D

r

Po
st 

Oa
k L

n

Cr
es

tpo
int

 D
r

Mulberry Dr

NorthBrook Ave

Me
lro

se
Gr

v
Shore St

Ga
rde

n
Wa

y

Sc
arl

et
Fa

lls
 D

r

Cedar Ln

Silver
Leaf Ct

Sunrise Bay Point

Lake Run Rd

Driftwood Dr

Fishermans Cove

Oa
k G

rov
e P

kw
y

Anchor Dr

Carter Dr

Knollwood
Trail Ct

Sycamore St

Sheridan
Rd

Ro
bin

wo
od

 Ln

Autumn

Mist Cv

Kayewood Dr

Highland Cir

Fulton St

Dempster
Ct

Hig
hm

oo
r C

t

Shahan Prairie Rd

Highline Ln

Hickory St

Br
ier

ga
te 

Dr

Cardinal Ridge Ln

Cove Meadow Dr
Ma

gn
oli

a S
t

West
way 

Dr

Wy
att

 W
ay

Hig
h M

ea
do

w 
Dr

Wi
ld 

Va
lle

y D
r

Cypress Dr

Augusta Ct

Ap
pro

ac
h L

n

Oakland Pl

Ch
ap

ma
n L

n

Fa
sh

ion
 St

Re
pla

y L
n

Ro
xie

 D
r

W Eldorado Pkwy

Woodcrest Ln

Willow Garden Dr

Meadow Ln

Sh
ore

lin
e D

r

Su
ma

rd 
Dr

Bay Ridge Dr

Cherrybark Trl

Cove Trl

Briarwood Ln

French Settlement Rd

Gl
en

wo
od

 D
r

Quail Run Dr

Misty Cv

Spinnaker Run Point

Pinnacle Cir

South Oak Dr

E Dickson Ln

Cottonwood Ln

Covey Ct

Sa
va

nn
ah

 Ln

McDaniel Dr

Pine Bluff Trl

Sp
rin

g B
ran

ch
 D

r

Lonesome Dove Dr

W Dickson Ln

Town of Little Elm
Denton County, Tx0 0.350.175

Miles

Location Map

Date: 1/12/2021 º

Legend
West End Development Area
Town Limits

West End 
Planning Initiative

Sources: Esri, HERE, Garmin,
USGS, Intermap,
INCREMENT P, NRCan, Esri
Japan, METI, Esri China

This map is the property of the Town of Little Elm,
and is not to be reproduced by any means, mechanical
or digital, without written consent of the Town.

This product is for informational purposes and may not have
been prepared for or be suitable for legal, engineering, or
surveying purposes.  It does not represent an on-the-ground
survey and represents only the approximate relative location
of property boundaries.



Owner: Town of Little Elm
Acres: ~4.9

Windsor Dr
Old State Highway 24

Shorewood Dr

Hil
l L

n

Ripple Dr

Misty Trl

Shady Trl

Sleepy Hollow Trl

Kn
ob

 H
ill D

r

TurtlePond Cir

Hillcrest Dr

Lakeview
Dr

Elm Dr

Ed
ge

wo
od

 P
l Loneta Ln

Cottonwood Trl

Moonlight Dr

Cr
es

tw
oo

d P
l

No
rth

wo
od

Te
rra

ce

Gr
ee

nw
oo

d D
r

Woodridge Dr

Highland Dr

Cove Pl

Su
nri

se
Ct

Pinnacle Bay Point

Wellington Dr

Elk
 Po

int
 D

r

Po
st 

Oa
k L

n

Cr
es

tpo
int

 D
r

Mulberry Dr

NorthBrook Ave

Me
lro

se
Gr

v
Shore St

Ga
rde

n
Wa

y

Sc
arl

et
Fa

lls
 D

r

Cedar Ln

Silver
Leaf Ct

Sunrise Bay Point

Lake Run Rd

Driftwood Dr

Fishermans Cove

Oa
k G

rov
e P

kw
y

Anchor Dr

Carter Dr

Knollwood
Trail Ct

Sycamore St

Sheridan
Rd

Ro
bin

wo
od

 Ln

Autumn

Mist Cv

Kayewood Dr

Highland Cir

Fulton St

Dempster
Ct

Hig
hm

oo
r C

t

Shahan Prairie Rd

Highline Ln

Hickory St

Br
ier

ga
te 

Dr

Cardinal Ridge Ln

Cove Meadow Dr
Ma

gn
oli

a S
t

West
way 

Dr

Wy
att

 W
ay

Hig
h M

ea
do

w 
Dr

Wi
ld 

Va
lle

y D
r

Cypress Dr

Augusta Ct

Ap
pro

ac
h L

n

Oakland Pl

Ch
ap

ma
n L

n

Fa
sh

ion
 St

Re
pla

y L
n

Ro
xie

 D
r

W Eldorado Pkwy

Woodcrest Ln

Willow Garden Dr

Meadow Ln

Sh
ore

lin
e D

r

Su
ma

rd 
Dr

Bay Ridge Dr

Cherrybark Trl

Cove Trl

Briarwood Ln

French Settlement Rd

Gl
en

wo
od

 D
r

Quail Run Dr

Misty Cv

Spinnaker Run Point

Pinnacle Cir

South Oak Dr

E Dickson Ln

Cottonwood Ln

Covey Ct

Sa
va

nn
ah

 Ln

McDaniel Dr

Pine Bluff Trl

Sp
rin

g B
ran

ch
 D

r

Lonesome Dove Dr

W Dickson Ln

LC

AG

LC
LC

LC

LC

AG

LC

AG

AG

AG

AG

AG

CF

Town of Little Elm
Denton County, Tx0 0.350.175

Miles

Location Map

Date: 12/16/2020 º

Legend
West End Development Area
Ranchette Estates (SF-RE)
Single Family 1 (SF1)
Single Family 2 (SF2)
Single Family 3 (SF3)
Single Family 4 (SF4)
Single Family (A1)
Single Family (A2)
Townhouse District (TH)
Manufactured Home (MH1)
Manufactured Home Park (MH2)
Duplex (D)
Multi-Family (MF)
Lakefront District (LF)
Agriculture (AG)
Office (O)
Community Facilities (CF)
Light Commercial (LC)
Heavy Commercial (HC)
Light Industrial (LI)
Heavy Industrial (HI)
Town Limits

West End 
Planning Initiative

Sources: Esri, HERE, Garmin,
USGS, Intermap,
INCREMENT P, NRCan, Esri
Japan, METI, Esri China

This map is the property of the Town of Little Elm,
and is not to be reproduced by any means, mechanical
or digital, without written consent of the Town.

This product is for informational purposes and may not have
been prepared for or be suitable for legal, engineering, or
surveying purposes.  It does not represent an on-the-ground
survey and represents only the approximate relative location
of property boundaries.



Owner: Town of Little Elm
Acres: ~4.9

Windsor Dr
Old State Highway 24

Shorewood Dr

Hil
l L

n

Ripple Dr

Misty Trl

Shady Trl

Sleepy Hollow Trl

Kn
ob

 H
ill D

r

TurtlePond Cir

Hillcrest Dr

Lakeview
Dr

Elm Dr

Ed
ge

wo
od

 P
l Loneta Ln

Cottonwood Trl

Moonlight Dr

Cr
es

tw
oo

d P
l

No
rth

wo
od

Te
rra

ce

Gr
ee

nw
oo

d D
r

Woodridge Dr

Highland Dr

Cove Pl

Su
nri

se
Ct

Pinnacle Bay Point

Wellington Dr

Elk
 Po

int
 D

rPo
st 

Oa
k L

n

Cr
es

tpo
int

 D
r

Mulberry Dr

NorthBrook Ave

Me
lro

se
Gr

v
Shore St

Ga
rde

n
Wa

y

Sc
arl

et
Fa

lls
 D

r

Cedar Ln

Silver
Leaf Ct

Sunrise Bay Point

Lake Run Rd

Driftwood Dr

Fishermans Cove

Oa
k G

rov
e P

kw
y

Anchor Dr

Carter Dr

Knollwood
Trail Ct

Sycamore St

Sheridan
Rd

Ro
bin

wo
od

 Ln

Autumn

Mist Cv

Kayewood Dr

Highland Cir

Fulton St

Dempster
Ct

Hig
hm

oo
r C

t

Shahan Prairie Rd

Highline Ln

Hickory St

Br
ier

ga
te 

Dr

Cardinal Ridge Ln

Cove Meadow Dr
Ma

gn
oli

a S
t

West
way 

Dr

Wy
att

 W
ay

Hig
h M

ea
do

w 
Dr

Wi
ld 

Va
lle

y D
r

Cypress Dr

Augusta Ct

Ap
pro

ac
h L

n

Oakland Pl

Ch
ap

ma
n L

n

Fa
sh

ion
 St

Re
pla

y L
n

Ro
xie

 D
r

W Eldorado Pkwy

Woodcrest Ln

Willow Garden Dr

Meadow Ln

Sh
ore

lin
e D

r

Su
ma

rd 
Dr

Bay Ridge Dr

Cherrybark Trl

Cove Trl

Briarwood Ln

French Settlement Rd

Gl
en

wo
od

 D
r

Quail Run Dr

Misty Cv

Spinnaker Run Point

Pinnacle Cir

South Oak Dr

E Dickson Ln

Cottonwood Ln

Covey Ct

Sa
va

nn
ah

 Ln

McDaniel Dr

Pine Bluff Trl

Sp
rin

g B
ran

ch
 D

r

Lonesome Dove Dr

W Dickson Ln

Lake

Lake

Lake

Lake

Lake

Lake

Lake

Retail/Commercial

Mixue Use

Floodplain/CORP

Low Density
Residential

Special
Planning
Area 1

Lake

Lake

Lake

Lake

Estate
Residential

Estate
Residential

Estate
Residential

Lakefront
District

Parks and Open
Space

Special
Planning
Area 1

Special
Planning
Area 1

Special
Planning
Area 1

Special
Planning Area 1

Special
Planning
Area 1

Special
Planning
Area 1

Special
Planning
Area 1Special

Planning
Area 1

Special
Planning
Area 1

Lake

Lake

Lake

Lake

Lake

Lake
Lake

Lake

Lake

Lake
Lake

Lake

Lake

Lake

Lake

Lake

Lake

Lake

Lake

Lake

Lake

Lake

Lake

Lake

Lake

Lake

Lake

Lake

Lake

Lake

Lake

Lake

Lake

Lake

Lake

Lake

Lake
Lake

Lake

Lake

Lake

Lake

Estate
Residential

Estate
Residential

Low Density
Residential

Floodplain/CORP

Floodplain/CORP

Floodplain/CORP

Floodplain/CORP

Floodplain/CORP

Floodplain/CORP

Floodplain/CORP

Floodplain/CORP

Low Density
Residential

Ranchette
Residential

Town of Little Elm
Denton County, Tx0 0.350.175

Miles

Location Map

Date: 12/16/2020 º

Legend
West End Development Area

Future Land Use
Future Land Use

Estate Residential
Ranchette Residential
Low Density Residential
Medium Density Residential
High Density Residential
Public/Semi- Public
Parks and Open Space
Floodplain/ CORP
Retail/ Commercial
Lakefront District
Special Planning Area 1
Special Planning Area 2
Special Planning Area 3
Mixed Use
Lake Lewisville
Town Limits

West End 
Planning Initiative

Sources: Esri, HERE, Garmin,
USGS, Intermap,
INCREMENT P, NRCan, Esri
Japan, METI, Esri China

This map is the property of the Town of Little Elm,
and is not to be reproduced by any means, mechanical
or digital, without written consent of the Town.

This product is for informational purposes and may not have
been prepared for or be suitable for legal, engineering, or
surveying purposes.  It does not represent an on-the-ground
survey and represents only the approximate relative location
of property boundaries.



Town of Little Elm   53 | Page 
Comprehensive Plan 2017  Chapter 2 Visioning  

Area 8 Visual Character Survey (VCS) Results Summary 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Desirable 
 The following images received the votes from the majority as desirable land use. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Undesirable 
The following images received the votes from the majority as undesirable land use. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

Key Points 
 
Eldorado and 720 Intersection for non-residential 
Big chunk of land west of Eldorado 
Planned Development Unique destination 

Opportunity for Redevelopment 

The VCS results shows similar results for Area 7 
and Area 8, however some typical single-
family development is also desirable. 

The most undesirable uses for this area are 
mixed use, big-box commercial and 
additional lakefront homes. This area is 
perceived to be of historical value. 

 

Bo
ar

d 
Re

su
lts

  
 

 
 

V
C

S 
Re

su
lts

 
 

 
 

 
 

Su
m

m
ar

y 
 

 



 

AGREEMENT FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES    PAGE 1 

Town of Little Elm, Texas 
Standard Professional Services Agreement 

 This Agreement is made by and between the Town of Little Elm, Texas, a Texas home-rule 
municipality (hereinafter referred to as the "Owner") and Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc., (hereinafter 

referred to as the "Consultant") for Westside Planning Study, (hereinafter referred to as the "Project").  
In consideration of the premises, covenants and mutual promises contained in this Agreement, and 

other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, 
the Owner and the Consultant hereby agree as follows: 

ARTICLE I:  CONTRACT & CONTRACT DOCUMENTS 

1.1 THE CONTRACT 

The Contract between the Owner and the Consultant, of which this Agreement is a part, consists of the 

Contract Documents.  It shall be effective on the date this Agreement is executed by the last Party to 
execute it. 

1.2. THE CONTRACT DOCUMENTS 

The Contract Documents consist of this Agreement, the Solicitation, Requirements and Instructions to 
Bidders/Proposers, the Specifications, terms and conditions, Attachments, Maps, Drawings, Scope of 

Service, Time Line, all Change Orders issued hereafter, any other amendments hereto executed by 
the parties hereafter, together with the following (if any):   

Documents not enumerated in this Paragraph 1.2.1 are not Contract Documents and do not form part 

of this Agreement. 

ARTICLE 2:  RECITALS 

2.1 The Town desires to have the Consultant develop the program and provide necessary services 
to develop the same (“PROJECT”); and   

2.2 The Consultant has the knowledge, ability and expertise to provide such services; and  

2.3 The Town desires to engage the services of Consultant, as an independent Consultant and not 
as an employee, to provide services as set forth herein and in Exhibit A: Scope of Services and 
Exhibit B: Time Line/Milestone which is attached hereto and incorporated herein. 

ARTICLE 3:  TERM / TERMINATION 

3.1 TERM 

The term of this Agreement shall begin on the date of its execution by all Parties.  This Agreement shall 
continue until Consultant completes the services required herein to the satisfaction of the Town, unless 
sooner terminated as provided herein. 

3.2 TERMINATION 

This Agreement may be suspended or terminated by either Party with or without cause at any time by 

giving written notice to the other Party.   In the event suspension or termination is without cause, 
payment to the Consultant, in accordance with the terms of this Agreement, will be made on the basis 
of services reasonably determined by Town to be satisfactorily performed to the date of suspension or 

termination.  Such payment will be due upon delivery of all instruments of service to Town. 

In the event that the Town requires a modification of this Agreement with Consultant, and in the event 

the Parties fail to agree upon a modification of this Agreement, the Parties shall have the option of 
terminating this Agreement.  Payment to Consultant shall be made by the Town in accordance with the 



 

AGREEMENT FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES    PAGE 2 

terms of this Agreement, for the services mutually agreed upon by the Parties to be properly performed 
by the Consultant prior to such termination date.  

ARTICLE 4:  SCOPE OF SERVICES  

4.1 SCOPE 

The following services, when authorized in writing by a Notice to Proceed from the Town, shall be 
performed by Consultant in accordance with the Town’s requirements and as set forth in the attached 
Exhibit A, Scope of Services: 

Planning workshop, stakeholder engagement, concept plans and implementation 
strategy per Exhibit A. 

If there is a conflict between the above quoted subjects and Exhibit A or B, then such conflict shall be 
resolved pursuant to the provisions of Section 10.9, below. 

4.2 AUTHORIZED AGENT 

All work performed by the Consultant will be performed under this Agreement, signed by a duly 
authorized agent of the Town as approved by resolution of the Town Council of the Town of Little Elm, 

Texas, and the designated authorized agent for the Consultant.  

ARTICLE 5:  COMPENSATION / PAYMENT TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

5.1 Compensation for the performance of Professional Services described herein shall be paid to 

Consultant by the Town in a total amount not to exceed Forty Thousand dollars ($40,000) which shall 
accrue and be payable as provided in Sections 5.1 and 5.2 hereof.   

5.2 Work will be performed at the rates set forth in Exhibit B – Cost Proposal and Fee Schedule, 
which is attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference, or as otherwise provided in negotiated 
fee schedules approved within this Agreement, if any. 

5.3 Consultant payment for work under this Agreement shall be made in installments billed not more 
frequently than once each month upon receipt of invoices from the Consultant.  If the Town fails to 

make any payment due the Consultant within thirty (30) days after receipt of Consultant's invoice, the 
amounts due the Consultant will be increased at the rate of 1.5% per month from said thirtieth day, 
unless there is a good faith refusal by the Town to pay.  Payment shall be remitted to Consultant by 

Town as instructed on invoices.  

ARTICLE 6:  TIME FOR COMPLETION 

6.1 The Consultant's services and compensation under this Agreement have been agreed to in 
anticipation of orderly and continuous progress of the Assigned Project(s) through completion of the 
project(s).  Specific periods of time for rendering services are set forth in Exhibit B to this Agreement, 

by which times defined services are to be completed.  Times for performance shall be extended as 
necessary for delays or suspensions due to circumstances that the Consultant does not control. 

6.2 If the Town fails to give prompt written authorization to proceed with any phase of services after 
completion of the immediately preceding phase, the Consultant shall be entitled to equitable adjustment 
of rates and amounts of compensations to reflect reasonable costs incurred by Consultant as a result 

of the delay or changes in the various elements that comprise such rates of compensation, but in no 
event shall such compensation exceed the scope of services schedule of maximum payment unless a 

written amendment to this Agreement is executed between the Parties. 

ARTICLE 7:  INDEMNIFICATION 

7.1 THE CONSULTANT AGREES, TO THE FULLEST EXTENT PERMITTED BY LAW, TO INDEMNIFY AND HOLD 

HARMLESS THE TOWN, ITS OFFICERS, AGENTS, SERVANTS AND EMPLOYEES (HEREINAFTER COLLECTIVELY 

REFERRED TO AS “INDEMNITEES”) FROM AND AGAINST SUITS, ACTIONS, CLAIMS, LOSSES, ANY DAMAGE, 



 

AGREEMENT FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES    PAGE 3 

LIABILITY, AND FROM AND AGAINST ANY COSTS AND EXPENSES, INCLUDING, IN PART, ATTORNEY’S FEES 

INCIDENTAL TO THE DEFENSE OF SUCH SUITS, ACTIONS CLAIMS, LOSSES, DAMAGES OR LIABILITY ON ACCOUNT 

OF INJURY, DISEASE, SICKNESS, INCLUDING DEATH, TO ANY PERSON OR DAMAGE TO PROPERTY INCLUDING, IN 

PART, THE LOSS OF USE RESULTING THEREFROM, ARISING FROM ANY NEGLIGENT ACT, ERROR OR OMISSION OF 

THE CONSULTANT, ITS OFFICERS, EMPLOYEES, SERVANTS, AGENTS OR SUBCONTRACTORS, OR ANYONE ELSE 

UNDER THE CONSULTANT’S DIRECTION AND CONTROL, AND ARISING OUT OF, RESULTING FROM, OR CAUSED BY 

THE NEGLIGENT PERFORMANCE OR FAILURE OF PERFORMANCE OF ANY WORK OR SERVICES UNDER THIS 

AGREEMENT, OR FROM CONDITIONS CREATED BY THE NEGLIGENT PERFORMANCE OR NON-PERFORMANCE OF 

SAID WORK OR SERVICES.  IN THE EVENT ONE OR MORE OF THE INDEMNITEES IS DETERMINED BY A COURT OF 

LAW TO BE JOINTLY OR DERIVATIVELY NEGLIGENT OR LIABLE FOR SUCH DAMAGE OR INJURY, THE CONSULTANT 

SHALL BE OBLIGATED TO INDEMNIFY INDEMNITEES AS PROVIDED HEREIN ON A PROPORTIONATE BASIS IN 

ACCORDANCE WITH THE FINAL JUDGMENT, AFTER ALL APPEALS ARE EXHAUSTED, DETERMINING SUCH JOINT OR 

DERIVATIVE NEGLIGENCE OR LIABILITY.  THIS INDEMNIFICATION IS SUBJECT TO THE LIMITATIONS IN TEXAS 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT CODE, § 271.904(A) AND TEXAS CIVIL PRACTICE AND REMEDIES CODE, § 130.002(B), 

AS SAME MAY BE APPLICABLE TO CONSULTANT AS A MATTER OF LAW. 

7.02 NOTHING CONTAINED HEREIN SHALL CONSTITUTE A WAIVER OF GOVERNMENTAL IMMUNITY IN FAVOR OF 

ANY PARTY. 

7.03 CONSULTANT AGREES THAT IT IS AN INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR AND NOT AN AGENT OF THE TOWN, 
AND THAT CONSULTANT IS SUBJECT, AS AN EMPLOYER, TO ALL APPLICABLE UNEMPLOYMENT COMPENSATION 

STATUTES, SO FAR AS TO RELIEVE THE TOWN OF ANY RESPONSIBILITY OR LIABILITY FROM TREATING 

CONSULTANT’S EMPLOYEES AS EMPLOYEES OF TOWN FOR THE PURPOSE OF KEEPING RECORDS, MAKING 

REPORTS OR PAYMENTS OF UNEMPLOYMENT COMPENSATION TAXES OR CONTRIBUTIONS.  CONSULTANT 

FURTHER AGREES TO INDEMNIFY AND HOLD THE TOWN HARMLESS AND REIMBURSE IT FOR ANY EXPENSES OR 

LIABILITY INCURRED UNDER SAID STATUTES IN CONNECTION WITH EMPLOYEES OF CONSULTANT. 

7.04 CONSULTANT SHALL DEFEND AND INDEMNIFY AND HOLD THE TOWN HARMLESS FROM ANY AND ALL 

CLAIMS, SUITS OR LIENS BASED UPON OR ALLEGED TO BE BASED UPON THE NON-PAYMENT OF LABOR, TOOLS, 
MATERIALS, EQUIPMENT, SUPPLIES, TRANSPORTATION AND MANAGEMENT COSTS INCURRED BY CONSULTANT 

IN PERFORMING THIS AGREEMENT. 

ARTICLE 8:  INSURANCE 

8.1 Insurance 

The Consultant shall provide and maintain insurance as listed in the insurance requirements document.  

ARTICLE 9:  DEFAULT 

In the event Consultant fails to comply or becomes disabled and unable to comply with the provisions 
of this Agreement as to the quality or character of the service or time of performance, and the failure is 

not corrected within thirty (30) days after written notice by Town to Consultant, Town may, at its sole 
discretion without prejudice to any other right or remedy. 

(a) Terminate this Agreement and be relieved of the payment of any further consideration to 

Consultant except for all work determined by the Town to be satisfactorily completed prior to 
termination.  Payment for work satisfactorily completed shall be for actual costs, including 

reasonable salaries and travel expenses of Consultant to and from meetings called by the Town 
at which Consultant is required to attend, but shall not include any loss of profit of Consultant.  
In the event of such termination, the Town may proceed to complete the services in any manner 

deemed proper by the Town, either by the use of its own forces or by resubmitting to others.  
Consultant agrees that any costs incurred to complete the services herein provided for may be 

deducted and paid by the Town out of such monies as may be due or that may thereafter 
become due to Consultant under and by virtue of this Agreement. 



 

AGREEMENT FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES    PAGE 4 

(b) The Town may, without terminating this Agreement or taking over the services, furnish the 
necessary materials, equipment, supplies and/or help necessary to remedy the situation, at the 

expense of Consultant. 

ARTICLE 10: MISCELLANEOUS 

10.1 Reuse of Documents:   

All documents including Maps, Plans and Specifications provided or furnished by the Consultant 
pursuant to this Agreement are instruments of service; and Consultant shall retain ownership and 

property interest therein whether or not the work is completed.  The Town may make and retain copies 
of any plans or specifications provided under this Agreement for the use by Town and others; such 

documents are not intended or suitable for reuse by Town or others on extension of the Project or on 
any other Project.  Any such reuse without written approval or adaptation by the Consultant for the 
specific purpose intended will be at the Town's sole risk and without liability to the Consultant. 

10.2 Entire Agreement.   

This Agreement constitutes the sole and only Agreement of the Parties and supersedes any prior 

understandings or written or oral agreements between the Parties with respect to this subject matter. 

10.3 Assignment.   

Neither this Agreement nor any duties or obligations under it shall be assignable by Consultant without 

the prior written consent of the Town.  In the event of an assignment by Consultant to which the Town 
has consented, the assignee or the assignee’s legal representative shall agree in writing with the Town 

to personally assume, perform, and be bound by all the covenants, obligations, and agreements 
contained in this Agreement. 

10.4 Adjustments in Services/Amendment.   

This Agreement may be amended by the mutual written agreement of the Parties.  Consultant shall not 
make any claims for extra services, additional services or changes in the services without a written 

agreement with the Town prior to the performance of such services. 

10.5 Governing law.   

The validity of this Agreement and any of its terms or provisions, as well as the rights and duties of the 

Parties, shall be governed by the laws of the State of Texas; and venue for any action concerning this 
Agreement shall be in Denton County, Texas.  

10.6 Notices.   

All notices required by this Agreement shall be in writing and addressed to the following, or such other 
Party or address as either Party designates in writing, by certified mail, postage prepaid or by hand 

delivery: 

Town of Little Elm  Company 

Purchasing  Brad Lonberger, Project Manager 

100 W. Eldorado Pkwy.  801 Cherry Street #1300 

Little Elm, TX 75068  Fort Worth, TX 76102 

214-975-0411  817-612-9364 

purchasing@littleelm.org  brad.lonberger@kimley-horn.com 

 

 

10.7 Legal construction.   

mailto:purchasing@littleelm.org


 

AGREEMENT FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES    PAGE 5 

In the event any one or more of the provisions contained in this Agreement shall for any reason be held 
by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, illegal, or unenforceable in any respect, such invalidity, 

illegality, or unenforceability shall not affect any other provisions and this Agreement shall be construed 
as if such invalid, illegal, or unenforceable provision had never been contained in this Agreement. 

10.8 Successors and Assigns. 

(a) The Town and Consultant each is hereby bound and the partners, successors, executors, 
administrators, legal representatives and assigns of Town and Consultant are hereby bound to 

the other Party to this Agreement and to the partners, successors, executors, administrators, 
legal representatives and assigns of such other Party in respect of all covenants and obligations 

of this Agreement. 

(b) Neither the Town nor the Consultant may assign, sublet, or transfer any rights under or interest 
(including, but without limitation, moneys that are due or may become due) in this Agreement 

without the written consent of the other Party, except to the extent that any assignment, 
subletting or transfer is mandated by law or the effect of this limitation may be restricted by law.  

Unless specifically stated to the contrary in any written consent to an assignment, no assignment 
will release or discharge the assignor from any duty or responsibility under this Agreement. 

(c) Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed to create, impose or give rise to any duty owed by 

the Consultant to any Consultant, subcontractor, supplier, other person or entity, or to any surety 
for or employee of any of them, or give any rights in or benefits under this Agreement to anyone 

other than the Town and the Consultant. 

10.9 Conflict.   

If a conflict exists between this Agreement, and an Exhibit, the Solicitation, and/or the Response, then 

such conflicts shall be resolved as follows: 

(a) If a conflict exists between this Agreement and an Exhibit, the Solicitation, or the Response, then 

this Agreement shall control. 

(b) If a conflict exists between the Response and an Exhibit, the Exhibit shall control. 

(c) If a conflict exists between the Response and the Solicitation, the Solicitation shall control.  

10.10 Severability 

Any provision or part of this Agreement that is held to be void or unenforceable under any law or 

regulation or by a court of competent jurisdiction shall be deemed stricken and all remaining provisions 
shall continue to be valid and binding upon the Town and the Consultant, who agree that this Agreement 
shall be reformed to replace such stricken provision or part thereof with a valid and enforceable 

provision that comes as close as possible to expressing the intention of the stricken provision. 

10.11 Captions 

The captions used in this Agreement are for convenience only and shall not affect in any way the 
meaning or interpretations of the provisions set forth herein. 

 

 

10.12 Counterparts   

This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an 
original and constitute one and the same instrument.  

 



 

AGREEMENT FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES    PAGE 6 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have executed this Agreement on this the ___ day 

of ______________, 2021. 

 

TOWN OF LITTLE ELM     CONSULTANT 
 
 

                
Matt Mueller, Town Manager    Scott Arnold, Vice President 

 
 
Exhibit A: Specification and Response 

Exhibit B: Cost Proposal & Fee Schedule 



Attachment A - 1  

Town of Little Elm Westside Planning Initiative 

Scope of Services 

Exhibit A 
 

The Owner is looking to develop concepts and a strategic implementation plan for the westside of the Town, 
generally around the intersection of West Eldorado Parkway and Oak Grove Parkway. This process is broken 
into two phases, where the first phase is categorized in this scope of services. The purpose of this process is to 
determine the best practices for planning and economic development so that this westside area is not 
competitive with other centers in the Town, such as the Lakefront District. The focus of this initiative will be 
to create a preferred framework for development, optimal mix of land uses and provide recommendations 
for implementation of a strategic plan for the area. Phase two will be an initiative to support the 
implementation of recommended strategies and the scope and fee will be determined after the strategic plan 
recommendations are developed. 

 
The Consultant has identified the following tasks to develop concepts and a strategic plan in this westside 
area. 

 
Task 1 – Develop Work Session Agenda and Preparation (End of January) 

The Consultant will develop an outline for a 2-evening work session agenda that includes a breakdown of 
activities and prescribed steering committee attendees for each activity. The Consultant will review the 
agenda with Town staff via virtual meeting prior to the work session. 

The Consultant will review applicable documents and draft a summary memo for use in the work session. 
The following documents/items that will be reviewed: 

• Town Comprehensive Plan 

• Any Economic Development Strategic Plans 

• Recent roadway improvements 

• Parks and Trails Plans 
• Existing bike and street network 
• Current projects in design or development 

• Town Zoning and Subdivision Ordinance 

• Town Strategic Plan 

 
The Consultant will develop area maps in preparation for the work session. 

 
Task 2 – Attend and lead Work Session (February) 

The Consultant will have two employees present during a two-day work session. In addition, up to two 
employees with certain experience, identified as subject matter experts during Task 1, will be available for 
virtual participation during key work session items. Town staff will support the team by managing 
attendance of the steering committee and Town staff participants and providing a location with wi-fi, 
projection systems and room for appropriate social distancing for the work session. The work session is 
anticipated to consist of the following activities that will be finalized during Task 1: 

• Site Visits/Observational Tours 

o Walking tour of successful projects and new developments in the area 

o Walking tour of the subject site 



Attachment A - 2  

 

• Potential Work Session Meetings 

o Block. Street and Infrastructure Framework 

o Code Evaluation – Zoning audit/development process 

o Potential Catalytic Projects 

o Steering Committee Round Table Discussion 

• Wrap-Up and Visioning 

o Outline topline recommendations and strategies 

o Review conceptual framework to be further developed 

o Discuss next steps 

• EDC Components 

o Market research to understand basic conditions of market potential 

o Recruitment strategies based on current market trend and Town Vision 

 
Task 3 – Follow-Up Interviews (February-March) 

Up to three one- hour phone calls to cover outstanding questions that were not resolved during the work 
session. 

 

Task 4 – Deliverables (March-April) 

4.1 – Concept Plan: The Consultant will produce up to two (2) draft plans from the work session event that 
will be reviewed by Town staff and Steering Committee members. Comments and feedback will be received 
to produce a final conceptual plan that will be the basis for recommendations in the final slide deck. 

4.2 – Implementation Slide Deck: The Consultant will prepare a slide deck (PowerPoint) that outlines the 
results of the work session and list implementation items to begin the revitalization process in these study 
areas.  Strategies may include recommendations for zoning updates, CIP updates or other necessary 
relationship strategies to support the vision. This slide deck is anticipated to be future projects or actions 
that should be completed that are outside the scope of the work session event. One (1) round of edits will 
be provided after the draft slide deck is provided to Town staff and Steering Committee for review. 



Attachment B - 1

3 
 

Town of Little Elm Westside Planning Initiative 

Fee Schedule 

 Exhibit B 
 

The following fee is proposed per phase and task of this Westside Planning Initiative: 
 

Phase 1 – Concept and Strategic Plan 

 
Task 1 – Develop Work Session Agenda and Preparation 5,000 
Task 2 – Attend and lead Work Session 12,000 
Task 3 – Follow-Up Interviews 3,000 
Task 4 – Deliverables 20,000 
Total Phase 1 Fee $40,000 

 
Phase 2 – Implementation of Strategic Plan 

Tasks and fees to be determined after strategic plan recommendations are created. 


	Agenda
	AI_45_Approve Minutes of December 14 2020
	       ATT_December 14 2020 Minutes
	AI_46_FY 2019-2020 Financials
	       ATT_FY2019-2020 Financials
	AI_43_GROUND LEASE PURCHASE AGREEMENT FOR CERTAIN MULTI-FAMILY PROPERTY IN LITTLE ELM, DENTON COUNTY, TEXAS
	       ATT_Ground Lease Purchase Agreement  for Certain Multi-Family Property
	AI_44_GROUND LEASE PURCHASE AGREEMENT FOR CERTAIN RETAIL PROPERTY IN LITTLE ELM, DENTON COUNTY, TEXAS
	       ATT_Ground Lease Purchase Agreement  for Certain Retail Property
	AI_47_Westside Planning
	       ATT_West End Development
	       ATT_West End Zoning
	       ATT_West End FLUP
	       ATT_Comp Plan
	       ATT_Professional Services Agreement
	       ATT_2021 Concept_Strategic Plan

